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2020
140,565,028 99.86
192,536 0.14
140,757,564
100.00
( 14,892 )
2020
44,079,167 99.80
88,824 0.20
44,167,991
100.00
( 3,334 )
2020
SIGNUM MILLENIA 11
0.58 2024/ /25 137,971,170 136,437,612 140,565,028 99.86
LIMITED REGD MTN
2020
SIGNUM MILLENIA 11
LIMITED /AUD/ REGD 0.565 2024/ /25 44,560,420 43,470,842 44,079,167 99.80
MTN

2020

2020
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2019 30 2020
2020 151,014,338 15,977 10.23 1,082
2019 154,012,950 16,295 10.00 1,058
10 151,970,186 16,078 9.87 1,044
11 150,379,335 15,910 9.80 1,037
12 148,700,014 15,732 9.69 1,025
2020 151,460,701 16,025 9.87 1,044
153,032,840 16,191 9.98 1,056
154,767,318 16,374 10.20 1,079
153,755,668 16,267 10.23 1,082
151,014,338 15,977 10.23 1,082
149,172,591 15,782 10.25 1,084
148,989,345 15,763 10.31 1,001
143,954,040 15,230 10.23 1,082
140,757,564 14,892 10.20 1,079

31
45,029,308 3,399 9.70 732
2020

2019 47,007,196 3,549 10.00 755
10 45,926,732 3,467 9.77 738
11 45,893,675 3,465 9.77 738
12 44,281,067 3,343 9.52 719
2020 45,253,243 3,416 9.73 735
45,315,758 3,421 9.76 737
44,931,799 3,392 9.67 730
44,995,029 3,397 9.69 731
45,029,308 3,399 9.70 732
45,012,860 3,398 9.73 735
44,889,294 3,389 9.82 741
44,402,185 3,352 9.90 747
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)
2.30
(@)
3.00
100x
10.00 10.00
15,401,295.032 640,110.472 14,761,184 .560
15,401,295.032 640,110.472 14,761,184 .560
4,700,719.564 56,131.065 4,644 ,588.499
4,700,719.564 56,131.065 4,644,588.499
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1909

2020 31

145,835,223 150,726,593 15,946,874
1,595,539 168,808
316,429 33,478
358,429 37,922
9,883 1,046
153,006,873 16,188,127
63 7
359,238 38,007
56,011 5,926
50,983 5,39
50,944 5,390
43,691 4,623
19,038 2,014
9,510 1,006
3,527 373
64,340 6,807
657,345 69,547
152,349,528 16,118,580
14,761,185
10.32 1,092
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1909

2019 30 2020 31

898,887 95,102
898,887 95,102
523,196 55,354
302,323 31,986

80,794 8,548
54,792 5,797
51,054 5,402
50,983 5,394
17,834 1,887
12,157 1,286
10,027 1,061
9,872 1,044
1,113,032 117,759
(214,145) (22,657)
168,769 17,856
(1,059) (112)
167,710 17,744
4,891,370 517,507
(3,199) (338)
4,888,171 517,168
5,055,881 534,912

4,841,736 512,256
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(214,145)
167,710
4,888,171

(22,657)
17,744
517,168

4,841,736

512,256

147,507,792

15,606,324

152,349,528

16,118,580

152,349,528

16,118,580

15,401,295
(640,110)

14,761,185

154,012,950
(6,505,158)

16,294,570
(688, 246)

147,507,792

15,606,324

100/260



2020

31

2019

EDINETOOOO

OOo00oDOoO0oDo0o0oo00boOo0doOO(ELsSo33)

1909

30 2020 31

Ooooooooooooooooooad

4,841,736

(151,907,911)
6,490,739
(168,769)
(4,891,370)
(249,282)
(358,429)
(9,883)

56,011
50,983
50,944
43,691
19,038

9,510

3,527
64,340

512,256

(16,071,857)
686,720
(17,856)

(517,507)
(26,374)
(37,922)

(1,046)

5,926
5,394
5,390
4,623
2,014
1,006

373
6,807

(145,955,125)

(15,442 ,052)

154,012,950
(6,145,920)

16,294,570
(650,238)

147,867,030

15,644,332

1,911,905

202,280

1,911,905

202,280

1,595,539
316,429

(63)

168,808
33,478

0]

1,911,905

202,280
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FASB
ASC 946
FASB ASC 820
GAAP
2020 31
2020
31
$ $ $ 150,726,593 $ 150,726,593
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2020 31

$ 151,907,911 $ $
$ 151,907,911 $ $
NAV
2020 31
4.33
2020 31
0.34
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FASB ASC 740

more likely than not

50
2020 31
4,166
0.04
2020 31 2020
31
0.01
2020 31
2020 31
0.015 2020
31 2020 31
7,500
15,000 2020 31

2020 31
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60,000
0.08
65,000
2020 31
0.53
2020 31
2020 31
0.01
2020 31
2020 31
NAV
NAV
NAV
NAV
2020
151,014,338
(226,588)

1,561,778
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2020 11
2020 11,642,543
2020 11 CovID-19
COVID-19
COVID-19
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1909
2020 31

98.9

98.9
147,611,980 Signum Millenia 11, Ltd.5.8 due 9/25/24 150,726,593
145,835,223 150,726,593
145,835,223 150,726,593
145,835,223 150,726,593
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Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1909 USD

A Series Trust of Ortu Curva Trust

(An opcn-cnded umbrella Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Statement of Assets and Liabilities

May 31, 2020

(Fxpresved in {inited States Dollars)

Assets

Irvestmants, at fair value (cost $145,835,223) 5 150,728,593

Cash 1,585,538

Cash denominated in foreign curmencies 316,429

Recabvablas for
Investmenis sold 358,429
Interest 5.883
Total assets 153,005,873

Liabilities

Due bo custodian 63

Payables for;
Units repurchased 359,238
Profassional feas 56,011
Custogy fees 50,983
Distributor fees 50,944
Accounting and adminstrative kees 43 681
Printing fees 18,038
Management fees 9610
Agemt company fees 3,527
Other abikites 64 340
Total liabilites 657,348

Net assets - 152,349,528

Units outstanding

Class USD 14,761,185

Met asset valua per unit

Class USD § 1032

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
3
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Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1909 USD

A Series Trust of Ortu Curva Trust

{An open-ended umbrella Cayman Islands Unit Trust)

Statement of Operations

For the period from September 30, 2019 (commencement of operations) to May 31, 2020
(Expressed in United States Dollars)

Investment income

Imterest income g 398,887
Total Investmaent Income 396,887
Expenses
Distributor foas 523,196
Organization expense 302,323
Management foes 80,784
Prolessional fees G T2
Accounting and adminisirative fees 51,054
Custody fees 50,983
Printing fees 17,834
Otrwer fees 12,1587
Trustes fees 10,027
Agent company fees 8.ar2
Total exponscs 1,113,032
Mat investment loss {£14,145]

REALIFED AND UNREALIFED GAIM (LOSS):
Realized gain (loss) on:

Imvestments in securities 168,769

Fareign currency transactions {1,059)

Met realized gain 167,710
HMet change In unrealized appreciation (depreciation) from:

Investments in securnibes 4,831,370

Forgign cumency transactions 3.1

Met change in unrealized appreciation 4,838,171
Het gain from investments and forelgn currency 5,055,831
Hat increase In net assets rasulting from oparations 5 4,841,736

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
5
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Target Setting at Maturity Fund 190% USD
A Series Trust of Ortu Curva Trust

{An open-ended umbrella Caym:n Islands Unit Trust)

Statement of Changes in Net Assets

For the period from September 30, 2019 (commencement of operations) to May 31, 2020

{Expressed in United States Dollars)

Met incroase (decrease) in net asscls resulting from operations:

Met imsestment loss 3 (214,145)
Nat raalizad gain 187.710
Wet change in unrealized appreciation 4 8B817T1
Nat incrasts in net assals rosulting from oparations 4,841 736
Mat increasa in nat azeate msulting from fund unit ransactions 147,507,792
Het increase in net assels 152,349,528
Hat assots
Beginning of pericd -
End of pariod 5 152,349,528
Transacions in units for the perdod ended May 31, 2020 are as follows:
Furvd unit transactions
Linits
Issund 15,401,285
Redaamad Nk
Units, and of period 14,761,185
Amounts
Issued 3 154,012,950
Redeemed B 505 188
Amounts, end of period 5 147 507,782

The ercompanying notcs arc &n intcgral part of these financial statements.

]
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Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1909 USD

A Series Trust of Ortu Curva Trust

(An open-ended umbrella Cayman Islands Unit Trust)

Statement of Cash Flows

For the period from September 30, 2019 (commencement of operations) to May 31, 2020
{Expressed in United States Dollars)

Cash flows from operating activities:
Met increase in net asseds resulting from operations 5 4,641,735

Adustments to reconcile net increase in net assels resulbing rom
operations to net cash uged in operating actvilies:

Purchase of invesiments (151,907,911)
Proceeds from sale of Imvestments E,420.728
Realized gain on investments in securities (168, 69)
Change in unrealized apareciation on invesiments in securities {4,891, 370)
Met accration of discount on invastmant securities (249 283)
Decraasa in recaivables for investments sold (358 429)
Decraasa in recalvables for intenast {0.843)
Changes in payables for
Professional fees 56,011
Custody fees 50,983
Distibulor fees 50,944
Accounting and adminisirative fees 43,681
Prirting foes 15,008
Managament fnas 8,510
Agent company fees 3,527
Othesr lighilities 64,340
Kot cash used in operating actviies (145,855,1235)
Caszh flows from linancing activities:
Proceeds from Bsuance of units 154,012,950
Payments on redemption of units (8,145 520)
Met cash provided by Enancing activities 147,867,030
Met ingrease in cash and cash equivalents 1,811,905

Cash and cash equivalents - Beginming of penicd =
Cash and cash equivalents - End of period 3 1,811,805

At May 31, 2020 the amcunts included in cash and cash equivalants

Include the following
Cash $ 1,585,539
Cash denominated in foneign curmencies 316,429
Dz to custodsan [E3)
Cash and cash equivalents - End of peried 5 1,911,905

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
T
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Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1909 USD
A Series Trust of Ortu Curva Trust
(An open-ended umbrella Cayman Islands Unit Trust)

Statement of Financial Hichlichts

For the period from September 30, 2019 (commencement of operations) to May 31, 2020
{Expressed in United States Dollars)

Per-unit operating performanca:

Mat assat value, baginning of parlad H 10.00
Net investment losg? (0.01)
Met gain fhom irvestments and foreign cumency 0.33
Total income from investment cperations 0,32
Met asset value, end of period 5 10.32
Total retum~® 320%
Ratlos to average net assets:?

Ratio of expenses to average nel assefs? 0.97%
Ratio of net investment income to average net assets’ (0.09)%

* Caizulated based on average units oulstanding dunng the perod.

* Mot annualized for period of less than one year.

2 Unithelder's refumn end retios may vary from the retum and ratios presented due to the timing of capital Iransacions.
3 The ratios, excluding nonfecurting expenses such 23 professional and other fees, have been annualized.

The accompanying notes anc an integral part of these financial statements.
8
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Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1909 USD

A Series Trust of Orta Curva Trust

(An open-ended umbrella Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
INotes to Financial Statements

May 31, 2020

1. ORGANIZATION

Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1909 USD (the “Series Trust™) is a series trust of Orm Curva Trust (the “Trust™),
which is an open-cnded unil umbrella trust established in the Cayman Islands. The Trust was established by 2
Master Trust Deed deted Avgust 6, 2019, and commenced operations on September 30, 2019,

Pursuant to the Master Trust Deed, Intertrust SYP (Cayman) Limited and 10 EQ Manapement Bermuda Limited, acl
a3 Trustee and Manager to the Trust respectively.

The Trust is registered as a mumal fund under the Mutual Funds Law (2019 revision) of the Cayman Islands and the
Trust hes obizined a tax exemption certificate from the Government of the Cayman Islands.

The investment objective of the Series Trust is to pursue capital appreciation, while aiming to achieve a net asset
value per unit on (he maturity date being not less than 100% of the issue price, by investing all of the proceeds from
the issuc of Units in 5 Year USD Performance Linked Notes to be issued by Signum Millenia IT Limited,

Brown Brothers Harriman & Co. has been appointed as both the Series Trust's cuswodian (the “Custodian™) and
administrator (the “Administretor™). Sech duties are handled by separate and independent business units within the
entity.

Investors are able to subscribe into a single class of units; United States Dollar.

Capitalised terms nat defined here in are defincd in the Offcring Memorandum end Appendix which should be read
in conjunction with these financial statements.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Series Trust's financial statements have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles in the Uniled Stutes of Americy (“US GAAP™) applicable to financial reporting and are stated in United
States Dollar (“8” or “1ISD™).

The preparation of finsncial statements in conformity with US GAAP requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the Gnancial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual resuls could differ from those
eslimales.

The Series Trust is an investment company and accordingly follows the investment eompany accounting and
reporling guidunce of the Financial Accounting Standards Board (M"FASB") Accounting Standards Codification
(“ASC™) Topic 946 Finmeial Services — Invesiment Companies.

The following is a summary of the significant accounting and reporting policies used in preparing the financial
statements.

{A) Cash and Cash Equivalents. Cash balances are normally held in accounts with the Custodian. The Series Trust
considers all cash, forsign cash, and short-term deposits with maturity of three months or less at the time of purchass
to be cash and cash equivalents.

(B} Valuation. FASE ASC Topic 820, Fair Value Measurements, defines falr value as the price that would be
received lo scll an assct or paid to trensfer a liability (i.c., the “exit price”) in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date.

In secordance with the authoritative guidance on fair value measuremnents and disclosures under U8 GAAD, the
Series Trust discloses the fair value of its investments in a hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation

9
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Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1909 USD

A Series Trust of Orta Curva Trust

(An open-ended umbrella Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements

May 31, 2020

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUEDY

techniques used to measure the fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to valuations based upon
unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical agsets or liabilities (Level 1 measurement) and the lowest
priority to valuations based upon unobservable inputs that are significant 1o the valuation (Level 3 measurements).

The guidance establishes three levels of the fair value hierarchy as follows:

+  Lewvel 1 — Fair value messurements derived fom quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilites:

*  Lewvel 2 — Fair value méeasurements derived from inputs other than quoted prices included within Level
1 that are ohservable for the asset or lisbility, cither dircctly (iLe. as prices) or indirectly (iLe. derived
from prices); and

»  Level 3 = Fair value measurements derived from valuation technigues that inclede inputs for the asset
or Liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable imputs).

The following table presents the financial instruments carricd on the Statement of Assets und Lisbilities by ception
and by level within the valuation hierarchy as of May 31, 2020.*

Sumted prca
oted Prices
in Active Significant
Markats for Orthar Significant
Identical Observabde Unobearvable
Investmonts Inputs Inputs Fair Value at
= m 1] [Level 2} (Lenol A) Moy 31, 2020
Parformance Linked Notes 3 - 5 - 5 150,726,593 % 150.728.583

* For further information on categorics of secunitics refer to the Schedule of Investments,

The following is a summary of purchases, issuances, and transfers of the fair valuations using sipnificant
unvobserveble inputs (Level 3) for the Series Trust during the period ended May 31, 2020, as applicable:

Transfers into Transfers out of
Imvectmant in Securitios Purchasos Lival 3 Luvel 3
Parformance Linked Noles 5 151,907 811 5 - 5 -
Total Inveatments 5 151.507.911 5 = 5

The Performanee Linked Notes are valued by the Calenlation Agent at each NAV date. The Motes are exposed to a
Fixed Portion and an Active Portion. The Fixed Portion is structured through cumrency swap transactions that
exchange JPY for JGBs and the currency of denomination of the Scries Trust (USD). The Active Portion aims
generate excess return based on the performance of the Strategy through the call option transaction between the
Notes Issuer and Goldman Sachs lnternational. The Fixed Portion is valued based on yield with valuation inputs
being prevailing interest rates and credit sk asscssment. At May 31, 2020 an increase in the yield of 1% would
result in a fall in value of the Fixed Portion of approximarely 4.33%. The Active Porton is valued based on the
strategy level, which in turn s based on the performance of the Underlying Funds, At May 31, 2020 an increase in
strategy level of 1% would result in an increase in the note price of 0.34%.

Inputs are used in applying the various valvation techniques and broadly refer to the assumptions that market
parficipants use to make valuation decisions, including assumptions about risk. Inputs may include price
information, specific and broad credit data, liguidity stafistics, and other factors. A finanecial instrument's level
within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest level of any input that is significant to the fair value
mensurement. However, the determination of what constilules “observable”™ requires significant judgment by the

10
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Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1209 USD

A Series Trust of Ortu Curva Trust

({An open-ended umbrella Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statcments

May 31, 2020

2. SIGNIFICANT ACOOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Mungger, The Manager considers observeble data to be that market data which is readily available, regularly
distributed or updated, relizble and verifiable, not proprictary, end provided by independent sources that are actively
involved in the relsvant marker. The cateporization of a financial instrument within the hierarchy is based upon the
pricing transparency of the instrument and does not necessarily correspond to the Manager's perecived risk of that
instrument.

(C) Securities Transactions and Investment Income. Securities transactions are recorded as of the trade date for
financial reporting purposes. Realized gains and losscs from scouritics sold are recorded on the first-in, first-out cost
basis. Dividend income is recorded on the ex-dividend date. Investment income is recorded net of withholding laxes.

(D) Foreign Currency. The Series Trust's functional end reporting currency is United States Dollar, which is the
currency of the primary economic environment in which it upr.'ra.tui Therefore, the United States Dollar is
considered as the currency that most faithfully represents the economic effects of the underlying transactions, evenis
and conditions. The fluctuations in the value of currency holdings and other assets and liabilities resulting from
changes in exchange rates are recorded as unrcalized forcign currency appreciation and depreciation. Realized gains
or losses and unrealized appreciation or depreciation on investment securities and income and cxpenscs arc
translated on the respective dates of such transactions and the reporting date, respectively. The effects of changes in
foreipn currency exchange rates on investments in seeuritics are not segregated on the Statement of Operations from
the effects of changes in market prices and values of those securities, but are included with net rcalized and
unrealized gains or losses,

(E) Duc to Custodian. Duc to custodian in the Stalement of Assets and Lighilities includes amounts related to
foreign currency or cash owed.

(F) Offsetting. The Series Trust is required t disclose the impact of offsetting assets and liabilities represented in
the Smtement of Asscts and Liabilitics to enable users of the financiel slatements 1o evaluate the effect or potential
effect of netting arrangements on its financial position for recopnized assets and liabilitics. Thesc recopnized asscls
and ligbilities are financial instruments and derivative instruments that are either subject to an enforceable master
netting arrangement or similar agreement or meet the following right of set ofl crileria: the amounts owed by the
Series Trust to another party are determinable, the Series Trust has the right tn ser off the amountz awed with the
gmounts owed by the other party, the Series Trust intends w set off, and the Series Trust's right of set off is
enforceable at law.

{G) Receivables for Units Sold Subseribed in advance and Payables for Units Repurchased. Receivable for
umits subscribed in advanee is camricd at the issuence amount that is receivable at the Statement of Assets and
Lizhilities at May 31, 2020. Payahle for repurchase of units s carried at the repurchase amount thal is puyuble at the
Staternent of Assets and |iabilities at May 31, 2020,

(H) Due from and due to brokers. Amounts due from and to brokers represent receivables for securities sold and
payables for securities purchased that have been contracted for but not vet scttled or delivered on the Stalement of
Assets and Liabilities date respectively. The due from brokers balance is held for collection.

3. UNITS

As of May 31, 2020 all of the units issued by the Series Trust were held by onc unitholder.

(A) Subseription of Units. Units were available for subscription at the relevant purchase price on each dealing day.
The purchase price per unil calculated by dividing the net asset value as at the valuation point on the Yeluation Day
{uch duy other than a Saturday or a Sunday on which banks and stock cxchanges in cach of New York, London,

Tokyo and Sydney are open for business and/or such other day or days as the Manager, after consultation with the
Trustee, may from time to time detennine in respeéct of the Series Trust) falling on the relevant dealing day by the

1
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Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1909 USD

A Series Trust of Orta Curva Trust

{An open-ended umbrella Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements

May 31, 2020

3. UNITS (CONTINUED)

number of units in issue on such Valiation Day, rounded down to three decimal places. The benefit of any such
rounding will be retained by the Series Trust.

All income, expenses, realized and unrealized gains and losses of the Series Trust are allocated to the unit classcs
based on their respective net assels.

(B) Repurchase of Units. Units may be submitted for repurchase at the option of unitholders as at cach Repurchase
Day (each day other than a Saturday or @ Sunday on which banks and stock exchanges in each of New York,
London, Tokya and Sydney are open for business and/or such other day or duys as the Manager, afler consultation
with the Trustee, may from time to time determine in respect of the Senes 'rust).

Unitholders may only submit a repurchase request in respect of settled units, for which payment has been received in
respect of their initial purchase. Repurchase requests may be sent by electronic transmission.

{C) Valuation. The net asset value is calculated by the Administrator as at the valuation point on each Valuation
Day using such pricing service provider or pricing source as the Manager and the Trustee may determine from time
to time. The Manager believes that the methods, principles, significant assumptions used are reasonahle, reliable and
consistent, have been consisiently applicd and resull in 2 measure of fair valoe that is appropriate for fair value
measurement. Such prices will be treated as conclusive by the Trustee, the Administrator und the Munuger and there
were no independent verification of such prices.

The Adminisirator caleulales the nel assel velue and the net asset value per unit in USD.

Units are rounded (using natural rounding convention) to the nearest two decimal places, inciudes fractions of a
Unil

The Administrator may apply such foreign exchanpge rates as determined by the Manaper in consultation with the
Trustee, as reasonably obtninable on the relevant Valuation Day in order to make any calculations that require the
net asset value be exchanged inte or from the relevant curmeney.

{D) Distribution Policy. The policy in relation w the Series Trust is not to make disributions to Unitholders.,
Consequently, all the Series Trust's net income and realised capital gains will be reinvested and reflected in the Net
Assat Value,

4. MARKET AND CREDIT RISKS

In the normal course of business, the Series Trust trades financial instruments and enters into financial transactions
where risk of potential loss exists due to changes in the market (market risk) or failure of the other party to the
transactions to perform (credit risk). Similer to credit risk, the Series Trust may be exposed to counterparty risk, or
the nsk thal an institution or other entity with which the Seres Trust hes enseitled or open trunsactions will Jefull
The potential loss could exceed the value of the financial aszets recorded in the financial statements.

{A) Absence of Sccondary Market

There is not expected to be any secondary market for the Units. Consequently, it may be the case that Unitholders
will be able to dispose of their Units only by means of repurchase. The risk of any decline in the Net Asset Value
attributable to the Units held by 2 Unitholder requesting the repurchase of his Units during the period fom the date
of the rclevant repurchase natice until the relevant repurchase day will be bormne by the Unitholder requesting the
repurchase. In addition, there may be situations in which Unitholders are unable to have their Unils repurchased.

12
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Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1909 USD

A Series Trust of Ortu Curva Trust

(An open-ended umbrella Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements

May 31, 2020

4. MARKET AND CREDIT RISKS (CONTINUED)

{B) No Guarantee

An investment in the Series ‘T'rust is neither insured nor guarantecd by any govemment, government agencies or
instrumentalities or any bank guarantes fund. Units of the Series Trust are not deposits or obligatons of, or
guaranieed or endorsed by, any bank and the amount invested in Units may flucmate up andfor down. Preservation
of principal is not guarentecd. An investment in the Scrics Trust imvolves eertain investment risks, including the
passible Inss of principal. There i= no certainty that Unitholders will be able fo recover the tolal value of their initial
investment. Unitholders should be prepared o sustain losses up to the tofal amount invested.

(C) Exchange Rate Risk

The Units are denominated in USD. This presents certain risks relatfing to currency conversion if an investor's
financial activities are denominated principelly in a cumrency or currency unit (including JPY) other than USD.
These include the risk that exchange rates may significantly change (including changes due to devaluation of USD
or revaluation of the invesmor's currency) and the risk thar miphorities with jurisdiction over USD or the investor's
currency, as the case may be, may impose or modify exchange controls. An increase in the value of the investor's
currency against USD would deerease (g) the investor's currency equivalent value of the Net Asset Value and Net
Asset Value per Unit and (b) the investor's currency equivalent value of the distributions payable (if any).

(D) Oiher Risk

During the period, the COVID-19 outbreak was declared a pundemic by the World Heulth Organicotion. The
situation is dynamic with various citics and countrics around the world responding in diflerent ways o address the
outbreak. The rapid development and fluidity of this situation precludes any prediction as its ultimate impact, which
may have a continued adverse impact on economic and market conditions and trigger a period of global economic
slowdown.

The Mansger and the Trustees are monitoring developments relating to COVID-19 and are coordinating its
opecrational response based on existing business continuity plans and on guidance from global health organisations,
relevant pavernments, and peneral pandemie response hest practices.

5. GUARANTEES AND INDEMNIFICATION

Under the Series Trust's orgenizational documents, certain parties (including the Trustee and Manaper) are
m.dmmﬁedagmrm;mmnhahﬂmﬂ that may arise out of performance of their duties to the Series Trust
Additionally, in thc normal course of business, the Serics Trust enlers inlo contracts that contain & veriety of
indemnification clavses. The Series Trust’s maximum exposure under these arrangements is unknown as this would
involve fitore claims that may be made against the Series Trust that have not vet ococurred. However, the Series
Trust has not had prior claims or losses pursuant to thess conlrucls,

6. INCOME TAX

‘The Seriez Trust iz subject to the Cayman Islands laws in respect to itz tax status. Under current Cayman Islands
laws. there are no taxes or duty to be levied on profits, income, gains or appreciation, or any tax in the nanme of
estate duty or inhentance tax W any property comprised @ or uny income anising under the Series Trust, or the
vnitholders thereof, in respect of any such property or income. Auwthoritative guidance on accourting for and
disclosure of uncertainty in tax positions (FASB ASC 740), requires the Series Trust Trustee to determine whether a
tax position of the Series Trust is more likely than not to be sustained upon examination, including resolution of amy
related appeals or litigation processes, based on the technical merits of the position.

For tax pasitions meeting the more likely than not threshold, the tax amount recognized in the financial statements is
reduced by the largest benefit that has a grealer than [illy percent likelihood of being reulized upon ullimate
scttlement with the relevant taxing anthority. Az of May 31, 2020, thars was na foreign tax expense and no
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Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1909 USD

A Series Trust of Ortu Curva Trust

(An open-ended umbrella Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements

May 31, 2020

6. INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

outstanding foreign tax payable as disclosed in the Serics Trust's Statement of Operations and Statements of Assets
and Lizbilities, respectively.

7. FEES AND EXPENSES

{A) Administrator Fees

The Serics Trust has administrafive sgreements with the Administrator, for which the Administrator receives a
minimum monthly fee of US$4,166. The Administrator receives out of the asscts of the Serics Trust a fee al the rate
of 0.04% per annum of the Net Asset Value. The fees eamed by the Administrator during the period ended May 31,
2020 and outstanding fees payeble o the Administrator as of May 31, 2020 have been disclosed in the Statement of
Operations and the Statement of Assets and Liabilitics, respectively.

The Administrator also receives a wansfer agent fee of 0.01% per annum of the Net Asset Value, acerued on and
culculated as al each Valustion Day and payable monthly in arrears. The transfer agent fees eamed by the
Administrator during the period ended May 31, 2020 and outstanding transfer sgent [ees payable to the
Administrator as of May 31, 2020 have been disclosed in the Statement of Operations and the Statement of Assets
and Liabilities, respectively.

(B} Custody Fees

The Series Trust has a custody agreement with the Custodian. The Custodian receives out of the assets of the Series
Trust a custodian fee of 0.015% per amnum of the Met Asset Value, accrued on and calculated as at each Valuation
Day and payable monthly in arrears. The fees carned by the Custodian during the period ended May 31, 2020 and
outstanding fess payable to the Custodian as of May 31, 2020 have heen dizclosed in the Statement of Dpcnnm
and the Statement of Assets and Liabilities, respectively.

{C) Trostee Fees

The Trustes will be entitled to receive out of the assets of the Series Trust (i) a one-off fee of 11557,500 on the Initial
Closing Date, and (ii) a fixed annuzl fee of US515,000. The fees camed by the Trustee during the period ended May
31, 2020 and outstanding focs payable to the Trustee as of Mey 31, 2020 have been disclosed in the Statement of
Operations and the Statement of Assets and Liabilities, respectively.

() Management Fees

The Manager receives out of the assets of the Series Trust (i) 2 one-off fee of USS60,000 on the Initial Closing Date,
(it} a fee at the rle of 0.08% per annum of the Fee Amount, subject to & minimum fee of US5100,000 per annum,
scerued on and calenlated as ar each Valuation Day and payable monthly in arrcars, and (iii) & one-ofl fee of
U3565,000 upon the termination of the Series Trust. The fees earned by the Manager during the period ended May
31, 2020 and outstanding fees payable to the Manager as of May 31, 2020 have been disclosed in the Statement of
Operations end the Statement of Assels and Liabilities, respectively.

(E) Distributor Fees

The Distributor will be eatitled to receive out of the assets of the Series Trust a fee of 0.53% per annum of the Fee
Amoun! of cuch class of Unils, caleulated and accerwed dully and puyuable monthly in wrears, The [ees camed by the
Distribartor during the period ended May 31, 2020 and cutstanding fees payable to the Distributor as of May 31,
2020 have been disclosed in the Statement of Operations and the Statement of Assets and Liabilities, respectively.

(F) Agent Company Fees

The Agent Company will be entitled to receive out of the assets of the Series Trust a fee of 0.01% per anoum of the
Fee Amount of each class of Units, calculated and accrued daily and payable monthly in amrcars. The focs camed by
the Agent during the period ended May 51, 2020 and outstanding fees payable to the Agent Company as of May 31,
2020 have been disclosed in the Statement of Operations and the Statement of Assets and Liabilities, respectively.
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Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1902 USD

A Series Trust of Ortu Curva Trust

(An open-ended umbrella Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements

May 31, 2020

7. FEES AND EXPENSES (CONTINUED)

() Other Fees

The Series Trust may bear other expenses related to its operations including but not Limited to: (i) governmental
fezs: (i1) brokerape fiees and eommissiong and ather portfolio transaction cxpenses; (ii) costs of borrowing money,
including interest expenses; (iv) extraordinary expenses, including costs of litigation and indemnification cxpenscs;
and (v) audit fees.

(H) Establishment Caosts and On-Goinz Reserves

As per the Olfring Memorandum and Appendix, the Serles Trust incurred a expense reserve inclusive of five years
of anticipated expenses in year | of the Serics Trusts operations for the culeulation of the NAY in accordance with
the Offering Memorandum and Appendix. The expense resarve is composed of contractual fees the Fund will pay
over its life, Management recognizes that this is a departure from US GAAP therefore expenses have been adjusted
through the Stmatement of Operations in the current period to reflect only those costs attributable w the current period
in these financial statements.

The Serics Trust incurred orgenizational end sct up costs. For the caleulation of the NAY in accordance with the
Offering Memorandum and Appendix these costs are amortized by the Series Trust over the first three accounting
periods of its life. Amortization of such expenses over this fime period is a divergence from US GAAP, and is
therefore for these financial statements the amounts have been expensed through the Statement of Operations in full.

A reconciliation for the difference between the net assct valuc of the Scrics Trust as per the (inencial stalements
(“F5 NAV™), which is calculated in accordance with US GAAP, and the NAV calculated in accondance with the
Offenng Memorundum and Appendix (the “Trading NAV™) is shown below.

2020
Trading NAV 151,014,338
Organization cxpenscs (226,588)
Expense reserve 1,561,778
FS NAV 152,349,528

8. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Manager is responsible under the Master Trust Deed for the management of the investment and re-investment of
the assets of the Serics Trust, the exercisc of the power to borrow moncy in respect of the Series Trust and for the
issue and repurchase of units of the Series Trust

The Trustes is responsible under the master trust deed for the sdminisuetion of each Series Trust and for keeping the
register of unitholders.

The Manager and the Trustee are entitled to receive fees and expenses out of the assers of the Series Trust. Details of
these fees are set oul m Note 7 10 the financial statements.

9. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Trustee and Manager have evaluated all subsequent transactions and events through November 4, 2020, the date
on which these financial statements were available to be issuad.

From June 1, 2020 through to the date of thiz report, there were no subscriptions, and there were redemptions of
USDr 11,642,543,
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Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1909 USD

A Series Trust of Ortu Curva Trust

(An open-ended umbrella Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements

May 31, 2020

9. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS (CONTINUEIDY)

On March 11, 2020, the World Health Organieation declared the coronavirus disease 2019 (*COVID -19") 2
pandemic. Uncertainty remains around (i) the length of the disruption, and (ii) the impact of the COVID-19 on
global markers. The Trustes and the Manager consider the effects of the pandemic since the reporting date to be 2
non-adjusting post balance sheel event The velue of assets held in the Series Trust has not been adjusted due to the
coronavins situation and Management note no significant performance issucs for the Series Trust as w result of the
pandemic. Management has made an assessment of the impact of recent market events on the fund's ability to
continue as a going concem and concluded that the going concern assumption remains appropriate.

The Trustee and the Manager arc monitoring devclopments relating to coronavirus und ure coprdinating their
operational response based on existing business comtinuity planz and on puidance from the World Health
Organization, relevant governments, and general pandemic response practices.
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(Expressed in United States Dallars)

Principal

Amount  Security Description

USD 147511980

PERFORMANCE LINKED NOTES

CAYMAM ISLANDE

Sigriam Millenda 1, Lid.
£ 8% due 52924

TOTAL CAYMAN ISLANDS (Coat §145,838 223)
TOTAL PERFORMANCE LINKED NOTES (Cost §145,835,223)
TOTAL INVESTMENTS [Cost §145,835,223)

Assats EairValue
98.8%
98.9%
s 1soreasEm
5 150,728 583
5 4snyesmny
§ 15072658

The accompanying notes arc an integral part of these linancial statements.,
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1909

131

23 103

2020 30
75.49
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1909
2020 31
45,215,003 44,899,261 3,389,445
1,273,882 96,165
2,932 221
46,176,075 3,485,832
21,769 1,643
52,608 3,971
37,651 2,842
17,532 1,323
13,401 1,012
6,946 524
5,192 392
1,351 102
253 19
39,727 2,999
196,430 14,829
45,979,645 3,471,003
4,644,588

9.90 747
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1909

2019 30 2020 31

369,146 27,867
369,146 27,867
174,329 13,160
157,234 11,870

42,665 3,221
40,109 3,028
31,628 2,388
22,520 1,700
16,888 1,275
14,671 1,108
5,381 406
2,967 224
508,392 38,379
(139,246) (10,512)
(5,927) (447)
(4,450) (336)
(10,377) (783)

(315,742) (23,835)
(17,748) (1,340)

(333,490) (25,175)

(343,867) (25,959)

(483,113) (36,470)
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(139, 246)
(10,377)
(333,490)

(10,512)
(783)
(25,175)

(483,113)

(36,470)

46,462,758

3,507,474

45,979,645

3,471,003

45,979,645

3,471,003

4,700,720
(56,132)

4,644,588

47,007,196
(544,438)

3,548,573
(41,100)

46,462,758

3,507,474
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(483,113)

(45,574,986)
538,873
5,927
315,742

(184,818)

(2,932)
52,608
37,651
17,532
13,401
6,946
5,192
1,351
253
39,728

(36,470)

(3,440, 456)
40,680
447
23,835
(13,952)

(221)
3,971
2,842
1,323
1,012

524
392
102
19
2,999

(45,210, 645)

(3.,412,952)

47,007,196
(544,438)

3,548,573
(41,100)

46,462,758

3,507,474

1,252,113

94,522

1,252,113

94,522

1,273,882
(21,769)

96,165
(1,643)

1,252,113

94,522

131/260



1909

2019 30 2020

132/260

EDINETOOOO

OOo00oDOoO0oDo0o0oo00boOo0doOO(ELsSo33)

31

Ooooooooooooooooooad

10.00 755
(0.03) @
(0.07) ®)
(0.10) ®)
9.90 747
(1.00)
1.43
0.21)



2020

31

GAAP

GAAP

1909

2019

30

100

133/260

1909

2019

EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOoO0oDo0o0oo00boOo0doOO(ELsSo33)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2019

10 EQ



EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOoO0oDo0o0oo00boOo0doOO(ELsSo33)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

FASB
ASC 946
FASB ASC 820
GAAP
2020 31
2020
31
$ $ $ 44,899,261 $ 44,899,261

134/260



EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOoO0oDo0o0oo00boOo0doOO(ELsSo33)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2020 31

$ 45,574,986 $ $
$ 45,574,986 $ $
NAV
2020 31
4.33
2020 31
0.36

135/260



EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOoO0oDo0o0oo00boOo0doOO(ELsSo33)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2020 31
2020 31

2020 31

136/260



EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOoO0oDo0o0oo00boOo0doOO(ELsSo33)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

137/260



EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOoO0oDo0o0oo00boOo0doOO(ELsSo33)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

COVID-19

COVID-19

FASB ASC 740

more likely than not

50
2020 31

1,666
0.04
2020 31 2020

138/260



0.015

15,000

60,000

31

31

31

2020

2020

31

31

2020

0.01
2020
2020

7,500

2020

60,000

0.08

31

2020 31

139/260

EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOoO0oDo0o0oo00boOo0doOO(ELsSo33)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

31
31

2020
2020 31

31

65,000
2020

0.53
2020 31

0.01
2020 31



2020

2020

GAAP

GAAP

GAAP

NAV

NAV

11

140/260

EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOoO0oDo0o0oo00boOo0doOO(ELsSo33)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

NAV
NAV
NAV
NAV
2020
45,029,308
(129,842)
1,080,179
45,979,645
2020 11
2,271,512
COVID-19
COVID-19

CovID-19



EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOoO0oDo0o0oo00boOo0doOO(ELsSo33)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

COVID-19

141/260



EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOoO0oDo0o0oo00boOo0doOO(ELsSo33)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

1909
2020 31

97.7

97.7
46,445,910 Signum Millenia 11, Ltd.5.8 due 9/25/24 44,899,261
44,899,261
45,215,003 44,899,261
45,215,003 44,899,261

142/260



EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOoO0oDo0o0oo00boOo0doOO(ELsSo33)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1909 AUD

A Series Trust of Ortu Curva Trust

(An open-ended umbrella Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Statement of Assets and Liabilities

May 31, 2020

(Expressed in Austrulion Dollar)

Assets

Invesstments, at fair value (cost $45,215,003) $ 44,399,261

Cash denominated in foreign currancias 1,273,882

Receivables for:

Other assets 2832
Total assets 46 176.075

Liabllitlas

Due to custodian 21,768

Payables for;
Profassional fees 52,608
Custody fees 37651
Accounting and administrative fees 17,532
Distibutor fees 13,401
Printing feas 2946
Management fees 5192
Truslee fees 1.351
Agant company fass 253
Qther iabikbes 29,737
Total liabilities 198 430

Net assats g 45572 645

Units outstanding

Class AUD 4,644,588

Mat assat value per unit

Class ALD 3 .90

The accompanying notes are an integral parl of these fpancial statements.
3
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Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1909 AUD

A Series Trust of Ortu Curva Trust

(An open-ended umbrella Cayman Islands Unit Trust)

Statement of Operations

For the period from September 30, 2019 (commencement of operations) to
May 31, 2020

(Exprarsed in Australian Dallar)

Investment income

Interest income 3 360,146
Total Investmant Income 369,148
Expenses
Crganization expense 174,328
Destributor fees 157.234
Professional lees 42 EEE
Management fees 40,103
Cuslody feas 31,628
Accounting and administrative feas 22820
Other fees 16,688
Trustee fees 1467
Printing fees 5,381
Agent company feas 2 967
Total expenses 508,502
Met investment loss {138,246}

REALIZED AND UNREALIZED GAIN (LOSS):
Realized gain {loss) on:

Investmants In securities (5.92T)

Foreign cumeancy fransiations {44500

Net realized loss {10.377)
MNat change In unreallzed appreclation (depreciation) from:

Investmants in securites (315,742)

Foreign cumency translations {17,748)

Net change in unrealized depreciation (333.490)
Net realized and unrealized loss (345 867)
Met decrease in net assets resuiting from operations 3 (483,113}

The accompanying notes are an intepral part of these financial statements.
5
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Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1909 AUD

A Series Trust of Ortu Curva Trust

(An open-ended umbrella Cayman lslands Unit Trust)

Statement of Changes in Net Assets

For the period from September 30, 2019 (commencement of operations) to

May 31, 2020

(Expressed in Australian Dollar)

Met increase (decrease) in net assets resulting from operations;

el investment loss -3 (139.245)
Nel reailzed loss (10.377)
et change In unraalized depraciation (333.490)
MNet decrease in nel assets resulling from operations (483 113}
Distributions 1o unitholder (Note 4) -
Nelincregse in net assets resulting frem fund unit Tansactions 46,452 758
MNat increzsea in nat assals 45,970 84S
Net assets
Beginning of period =
End of perlod H 45 072,845

Transactions In units for the pericd ended May 31, 2020 were a3 follows:

Fund unit transactions

Linits
Issued 4,700,720
Redeemed {56,132}
Units, end of paried 4,644 528
Amounts
Issued 3 47 007,196
Redeemed (544 438)
Amounts, end of pariod 5 45 462,753

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
6
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Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1909 AUD

A Series Trust of Ortu Curva Trust

(An open-ended umbrella Cavman Islands Unit Trust)

Statement of Cash Flows

For the period from September 30, 2019 (commencement of operations) to

May 31, 2020

(Expressed in Ausiralian Dellur)

Cash flows from operating activities:
Med decrease in net asssts resuling from operations 5 (483.113)

Adjustmants 1o reconcile net increase in nel assels resuling from
operations o net cash used In cperating activitias:

Purchase of investments (45,574,986}
Froceads from sale of Investments 533,873
Realized losses on imeasimants in securities 5827
Change in unrealized depreciation on investmeants in securities 315,742
Met accreton of discount on investment secunities {184 818)
Changas in payablas for
Cther assets (2.932)
Professional fees 52,608
Cuslody fees ar.651
Accounting and administralive fees 17.532
Distributor feas 13400
Printing fees 6,546
Management fees 5,192
Trustee fees 1351
Agant company fees 253
Diher Liabiftes 38,728
Met cash used in financing activites (45,210,645)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from issuance of unils 47,007,195
Paymeanis on repurchase of units (344,438)
Met cash provided by operating activities 45,462,758
et increase in cash and cash eguivalents 1,252,113

Cash and cash equivalants - Beginning of perod =
Cash and cash equivalents - End of period -] 1,252,113

At May 31, 2020 the amounts included in cash and cash equivalents
include the following:

Cash denominaled in lorgign cumencies 5 1,273,882
Dhue o cusbadian (21,769)
Cash and cash eguivalents - End of period 5 1.252.113

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
¥
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Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1909 AUD

A Series Trust of Ortu Curva Trust

(An open-ended umbrella Cayman Islands Unit Trust)

Statement of Financial Highlights

For the period from September 30, 2019 (commencement of operations) to
May 31, 2020

(Expressed in Australian Doilar)
Per-unit operating performance:

AUD par unit
Net asset value, beginning of period 5 10.00
Met investrment loss” {0.03)
Net realizad and unraalized loss from investment activities 0,07}
Tatal loss from investment operations {0.10)
Distributions to unitholder <
Mt asset value, and of paried 5 9.80
Total return® {1.000%
Ratios to avarage nat assets: **
Ratio of cxpenses to average net asseds? 1.43%
Ratio of net invesiment income fo average net assets® {0.217%

' Calculated based on average units outstanding during the pericd.

A Mot annualized for penod of less than one yoear.

* Unitholder's relum and ratios may vary from the return and ratios presented due to the timing of capital transactions .
1Tha ralios, axciuding nonracurming expanses such as professionsl, registraticn and cther fees, have been annualized.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
8
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Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1909 AUD

A Series Trust of Ortu Curva Trust

(An open-ended umbrella Cayman Islands Unit Trust)

Notes to Financial Statements

May 31, 2020

1. ORGANIZATION

Target Setting at Maturity Furnd 1909 AUD (the “Series Trust™) is a series trust of Ortu Curva Trust (the “I'rust”),
which is an open-ended unit umbrella trust establishad in the Cayman Islands. The Trust was established by a
Master Trust Dead dated Aupust 6, 2019 and commenced operations on September 30, 2019

Fursuant to the Master Trust Deed, Intertrust SVP (Cayman) Limited and 1Q EQ Management Bermuda Limited, act
as Trustee and Manager to the Trust respectively.

The Trust is registered as a mutual fimd under the Mutal Funds Law (2019 revision) of the Cayman Islands and the
Trust has obtained 2 tax exemption certificate from the Government of the Cayman Islands.

The invesunent objective of the Series Trust was to pursue capital appreciation, while aiming to achieve a net asset
value per unit on the maturity date being not less than 100% of the issue price, by investing all of the proceeds from
the izsne of Units in 3 Year AUD Performance Linked Notes Lo be issued by Signum Millenia IT Limited.

Erown Brothers Harriman & Co. has been appointed as both the Series Trust's cusindian (the “Custodian™) and
administrator (the “Adminisrator™). Such dutics arc handled by separate and independent business units within the
cntity.

Investors are ahle to subscribe into 2 single class of units; Australisn Dollar.

Capitalised werms not defined here in are defined in the Offering Memorandum and Appendix which should be read
in conjunction with these financial statements.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Series Trust's financial statements have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles in the United States of America (“US GAAP") applicable to financial reporting and are stated in
Australian Dollar (*8" or “AUD™).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with US GAAP requires manapgement to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial stalements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.

The Series Trust is an investment company and accordingly follows the investment company accounting and
reporting guidance of the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASE™ Accounting Standards Codification
{*ASC") Topic 946 Financial Services — [nvestment Companies,

The following is a summary of the significant accounting and reporling policies used in preparing the financial
statements.

{A) Cash and Cash Equivalents. Cash balances are normally held in aecounts with the Custodian. The Series Trust
considers all cash, foreign cash, and short-term deposits with matrity of three months or less at the ime of purchase
to be cash and cash equivalents.

(B) Valuation, FASE ASC Topic 520, Fair Value Measurements, defines fair value as the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability {i.e., the “exit price”) in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date.

In zccordence with the authoritative guidance on fair value measurements and disclosures under US GAAP, the
Series Trust discloses the fair valve of its investments in a hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation

9
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Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1909 AUD

A Series Trust of Ortu Curva Trust

(An open-ended umbrella Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements

May 31, 2020

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

techniques used to measure the fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to valuations based upon
unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Tevel | measurcment) and the lowest
priority to valuations based upon unobservable inputs thal are significant to the valuation (Level 3 measurements).

The guidance establishes three levels of the fair value hierarchy as follows:

* Level | = Fair value measurements derived from quoted prices {(unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities;

»  Level 2 — Fair value measurements derived from inputs other than quoted prices included within Level
1 that are observable for the asset or liabiliry, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indircetly (iLc. derived
from prices); and

»  Level 3 — Fair value measurements derived from valuation techniques that include inputs for the asset
or liability that are not based on obzervable market data (unobservahle inputs).

The following table presents the financial instruments carried on the Statement of Assets and Liabilities by caption
and bv level within the valuation hierarchy as of May 31, 2020.*

{Unpdjuated)
Quoted Prices
i Aedive Significant
Markets for Other Significant
Hdentical Ooservable Unobsarvable
Inves iments Inputs Inputs Fair Value at
{Lovel 1) {Level 3) {Leval 3) May 31, 2020
Performance Linked Notes 5 - 3 - § 44880261 5 44,859,201

* For further information an categories of securities refer to the Schadule of Invesimenls.

The following is a summary of purchases, issuances, and transfers of the fair valuations using sigmificant
unobservable imputs (Level 3) for the Series Trust during the pericd ended May 31, 2020, as applicable:

Transfars into Trangfers cut of
Investment in Securities Purchasas Lewel 3 Level 3
Parformancs Loked Mofss 5 45.574.5985 5 - & -
Total Investments 5 45,574,986 5 . [] -

The Performance Linked Notes are valued by the Calculation Agent at cech NAV date. The Notes are exposed to a
fixed portion and an active portion. The Fixcd Portion is structured through cwrency swap transactions thal
exchange JPY for JGBs and the currency of denomination of the Series Trust (AUD). The Active Portion aims to
generate cxcess return based on the performance of the Strategy through the call option transaction between the
Motes Issuer and Goldman Sachs International. The Fixed Portion 15 valued based on yicld with valuation inputs
being prevailing interest rates and credit risk assessmient. At May 31, 2020 an increase in the yield of 1% would
result in a fall in value of the Fixed Portion of approximately 4.35%. The Active Portion is valued based on the
stratesy level, which in tumn is based on the performance of the Underlying Funds. At May 31, 2020 an increase in
strategy level of 1% would resull in an increase in the note price of 0.26%.

Inputs are used in applying the variows valuation lechnigues and broadly refer to the assumptions that market
participants wse to make valuation decisions, including assumptions about risk Inputs may include price
information, specific and broad credit data, lguidity statistics, and other faclors, A Mnancial instrument’s level
within the fair value hierarchy iz based on the lowest level of any input that is significant to the fair value
measurement. However, the determination of what constitutes “observable™ requires significant judgment by the

10
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Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1909 AUD

A Series Trust of Ortu Curva Trust

(An open-ended umbrella Cayman Islands Unit Trust)

Notes to Financial Statements

May 31, 2020

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Manager. The Manager considers observable data to be that market data which is readily available, regularly
distributed or updated, relizble and verifizble, not proprictary, and provided by independent sources that are actively
involved in the relevant market. The categorization of a financial instrument within the hierarchy is based upon the
pricing transparency of the instrument and docs not neccssarily commespond to (he Manager's perceived risk of that
instrumenl.

(C) Securities Transactions and Investment Income, Secorities transactions are recorded as of the trade date for
financial reporting purposes. Realized gaing and losscs from securitics sold are recorded on the first-in, first-out cost
basis. Dividend income is recorded on the ex-dividend date. Investment income 15 recorded net of withholding wxes.

(D) Foreign Currency. The Series Imust’s finctional and reporting currency is Australian Dollar, which is the
currency of the primary cconomic cnvironmenl in which il operates. Therefore, the Austrelian Dollar is considered
as the curency that most faithfully represents the economic effects of the underlying ransactions, events and
conditions. The fluctuations in the value of currency holdings and other assers and lizbilities resulting from changes
in exchange ratcs arc recorded as unrcalized forcign currency appreciation and depreciation. Realized geins or losses
and unrealized appreciation or depreciation on investment securities and income and expenses are translated on the
respective dates of such transactions and the reporting date, respectively. The effects of changes in foreign currency
exchange rates on investments in securities are not segregated on the Swement of Operations from (he effecs of
chenges in market prices and values of those securities, but are included with net realized and unrealized gains or
losses.

(E) Due to Custodian. Due to custodian in the Statement of Assets and Liabilities includes amounis related Lo
foreign currency or cash owed.

(F} Offsetting, The Scrics Trust is required to disclose the impact of offsetting assets and liabilities represented in
the Statement of Assets and Liabilities o enable users of the financial statements to evaluate the effect or potential
effect of netting arrangements on its financial posidon for recognized assets and labilities. These recognized assels
and liabilitics are financial instrumenis and derivative instruments thet are either subject to an enforceable master
netting arrangement or similar agreement or meet the following right of ser off criteria: the amounts owed by the
Series Trust to another party are determinable, the Series Trust has the right to scl off the amounts owed wilh the
amounts owed by the other party, the Scrics Trusl intends to set off, and the Series Trust's right of set off is
enforcezble at law.

{G) Receivables for Units Subscribed in advance and Payables for Units Repurchased. Receivable for umits
subscribed in advance is carried at the issuance amount that is reccivable at the Staement of Assets and Liabilities at
May 31, 2020. Payable for repurchase of units is certied at the repurchase amount that is payable at the Statement of
Assets and Liabilities at May 31, 2020.

(H) Due from and due to brokers. Amounts due from and to brokers represent recervables for secunities sold and
pavables for securities purchased that have been contracted for but not yet setled or delivered on the Statement of
Assets and Liabilities date respectively. The due from brokers balunce is held for collection.

3. UNITS

As of May 21, 2020, all of the units issued by the Series Trust were held by one unitholder.

{A) Subscription of Linits. Units were available for subscription ar the relevant purchase price on each dealing day.
The purchase price per umit caleulated by dividing the net asset value as al the valuation poict on the Valuation Day
(each day other than a Saturday or a Sunday on which banks and stock exchanges in each of New York, London,

Tokyo and Sydney are apen for business andfor such other day or days as the Manapger, after consultation with the
Trustee, may from time to time delerming in respect of the Series Trust) falling on the relevant dealing day by the

11
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Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1909 AUD

A Series Trust of Ortu Curva Trust

(An open-ended umbrella Cayman Islands Unit Trust)

Notes to Financial Statements

May 31, 2020

3. UNITS (CONTINLED)

number of units in issue on such Valuation Day, rounded down to three decimal places. The benefit of any such
rounding will be retained by the Series Trust.

All income, expenses, realized and unrealized gains and losses of the Series Trust arc allocated to the unil clesses
hased on their respective net asscls

{B) Repurchase of Units. Units may be submitted for repurchase at the option of unitholders as at each Repurchase
Day (each day other than a Saturday or a Sunday on which banks and stock exchanges in each of New York,
London, Tokyo and Swiney are open for business and/or such other day or days as the Manager, after consultation
with the Trustee, may from time 1o ume determine in respect of the Series Trust).

Unitholders may only submit 2 repurchase request in respect of settled units, for which payment has been received in
respect of their initial purchase. Repurchase requests may be sent by electronic fransmission.

(C) Yaluation. The net asset value is caleulated by the Administrator as at the valuation point on each Valvation
Day (each day other than a Saturday or a Sunday on which banks and stock exchanges in each of MNew Yeork
London, Tokyo and Sydney are open for businass and/or such other day or days as the Manager, after consultation
with the Trustee, may from time to time determine in respect of the Series Trust) using such pricing service provider
or pricing source g% the ! or and the Trustee may determine from time to time. The Manager believes that the
metheds, principles, significant assumptions used are reasonable, reliable and consistent, have been consistently
applied and result in a measure of fair value that is appropriate for fair value measurement. Such prices will be
treated as eonclusive by the Trustee, the Administrator and the Manager snd there were no independent verification
of such prices.

The Administrator caleulates the net asset value and the net asset value per unit in AUD.

Units are rounded (using naoural rounding convention) to the noaresl two decimal places, includes fractions of ¢
Unmit.

The Administrator may apply such foreign exchange rates as determined by the Manager in consultation with the
‘I'rustee, as reasonably obtainable on the relevant Valuation Day in order to make any calculations that require the
net asset value be exchanged into or from the relevant currency.

(D) Distribution Policy. The policy m relation to the Series Trust is not to make distributions 0 Unitholders.
Consequently, all the Series Trust’s net income and realized capital geins will be reinvested and reflected in the Met
Assel Value,

4. MARKET AND CREDIT RISKS

In the normal course of business, the Senes Trust trades financial instruments and enters into financial transactions
where risk of potential loss exists duc o changes in the market (market risk) or failure of the other party to the
transactions to perform (credit risk). Similar to eredit risk, the Series Trust may be exposed to counterparty risk, or
the risk that an institution or other entity with which the Series Trust has unsertled or open mansactions will default.
The potential loss could exceed the value of the financial assets recorded in the financial statements,

{A) Absence of Secondary Market

There is not expected to be any secondary market for the Units. Consequently, it may be the case that Unitholders
will be able to dispose of their Units only by means of repurchase. The risk of any decline in the Met Asset Value
attributable to the Units held by a Unitholder requesting the repurchase of his Units during the period from the date
of the relevant repurchase notice until the relevant repurchase day will be borne by the Unitholder requesting the
repurchase. In addition, there may be situations in which Unitholders are unable to have their Units repurchased.

12
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Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1309 AUD
A Series Trust of Ortu Curva Trust
(An open-ended umbrella Cayvman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements
May 31, 2020

4. MARKET AND CREDT RISKS (CONTINUED)

{B) No Guarantee

An investment in the Series Trust is neither insured nor guaranieed by any government, government ggencies or
instrumentalities or any bank guarantee fund, Units of the Series Trust are not deposits or obligations of, or
guaranteed or endarsed by, any bank and the amount invested in Units may fluctuale up and/or down. Preservation
of principal is not guaranteed. An investment in the Series Trust involves certain investment risks, inchuding the
possible loss of principal. There is no certainty that Unitholders will be able to recover the total value of their initial
investment. Unitholders should be prepared to sustain losses up to the total amount invested.

(C) Exchange Rate Risk

The Units are denominated in AUD. This presents cerain risks relating to currency conversion if an investor's
financial activities are denominated principally in & currency or currency unit other than AUD. These include the
risk that exchange rates may significantly change (including changes due to devaluation of AUD or revaluation of
the Investor's Currency) and the risk thar authorities with jurisdiction over AUD or the Investor's Currency, as the
case may be, may impose or modify exchange controls. An increase in the value of the Inveslor's Cumency against
AUD would decrease (a) the Investor's Currency equivalent value of the Net Asset Value and Net Asser Value per
Unit zod {b) the Investors Currency equivalent value of the distributions payable (if any).

(D) Other Hisk

During the period, the COVID-19 outbresk was declared a pandemic by the World Health Organization. The
situation is dynamic with various cities and countries around the world responding in different ways to address the
outbreak The rapid development and fluidity of this situation precludes any prediction as its ultimate impact, which
may have 2 continued adverse impact on cconomic and markel conditions and trigger o peried of global economic
slowdown.

The Manager and the Trustees are moniwgring developments relating to COVID-19 and are coordinating its
operational response based on existing business contnuity plans and on guidance from global health organizations,
relevant povernments, and reneral pandemic response best praclices.

5. GUARANTEES AND INDEMNIFICATION

Under the Series Trust’s organizational documenis, certain perties (including the Trustee and Manager) are
indemnified agwinst cerlain Labilities that may arise out of perfrrmance of their duties to the Seres Trust
Additionally, in the normal course of business, the Series Trust enters into contracts that contain a variery of
indemnification clauses, The Series Trust"s maximum expaosure under these armangements is unknown as this would
involve future claims that may be made against the Series Trust that have oot yet occurred. However, the Series
Trust has not had prior claims or losses pursuant to these contracts.

6. INCOME TAX

The Series Trust is subject to the Cayman Islands laws in respect to its tax status. Under current Cayman [slands
laws, there are no taxes or duty o be levied on profits, income, gains or appreciation, or any tax in the neture of
estate duty or inheritance tax W eny property comprised in or any income arising under the Series Trust, or the
unitholders thereof, in respect of any such property or income. Authontative guidance on accounting for and
disclosure of uncertainty in tax positions (FASE ASC 740), requires the Scerics Trust Trustee o delermine whether a
tax position of the Series Trust is more likely than not to be sustzined upon examination, including resolution of any
related appeals or litigation processes, based on the technical merits of the position.

For @x positions meeting the more likely than not threshold, the tax amount recognized in the financial statements is
reduced by the largest benefit that has a greater than fiftv percent likslihood of being realized uwpon ultimate
settlement with the relevant mxing authonity. As of May 31, 2020, there was no forcign tax expensc and no
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Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1909 AUD

A Series Trust of Ortu Curva Trust

(An open-ended umbrella Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements

May 31, 2020

6. INCONME TAX (CONTINUED)

outstanding forcign tax pavable as disclosed in the Series Trust's Statement of Operations and Statements of Assets
and Liabilities, respectively.

7. FEES AND EXPENSES

(A) Administrator Fees

The Series Trust has administrative agreements with the Administrator, for which the Administrator receives a
minimum monthly fee of US £1,666, The Administrator receives out of the assets of the Series Trust a fee at the rate
of 0.04% per annum of the Net Asset Value. The fees eamed by the Admanistrator during the perind ended May 31,
2020 and outstanding faes payable to the Administrator as of May 31, 2020 have been disclesed in the Stetement of
Operations and the Statement of Assets and Liabilities, respectively.

The Administrator also receives a transfer agent fee of 0.01% per annum of the Net Asset Valee, accrued on and
calculated as at each Valuation Dav and payable monthly in arrears, The tansfer apent fees earned by the
Administrator during the period ended May 31, 2020 and outstanding mansfer agent fees payeble w the
Administrator as of May 31, 2020 have been disclosed in the Statement of Operutions and the Stalement of Assets
antl Lizbilitics, respeetively.

(B) Custody Fees

The Series Trust has a custody agreement with the Custodian. The Custodian receives out of the assets of the Series
Trust & custodian fee of 0.015% per annum of the Net Asset Vahie, accrued on and caleulated as at each Valuation
Day and pavable monthly in arrears. The fees eamned by the Custodian during the period ended May 31, 2020 and
outstanding fees payvable 1o the Custodian as of May 31, 2020 have been disclosed in the Statement of Operations
and the Statement of Assets and Liabilities, respectvely.

(C) Trustee Fees

The Trustee will be entitled to receive out of the assets of the Series Trust (1) a one-off fee of US$7,500 on the Initial
Closing Date, and {i1) a fixed annual fee of US$15.000. The fees earned by the Trustee during the period ended May
31, 2020 and outstanding fees payable to the Trustce as of May 31, 2020 have been disclosed in the Statement of
Operations and the Swtement of Assets and Liabilities, respectively.

(D) Management Fees

The Manager will be entitled to reccive out of the assels of the Series Trust (i) a one-off fee of USS60,000 on the
Initial Clesing Date, (ii) a fee at the rate of 0.08% per annum of the Fee Amount, subject 1o a minimum fee of
AUDG0,000 per annum, accrued on and calculated as at each Valuation Day and payable monthly in amear, and (iii)
a ane-off fee of 1US$635,000 upon the terminztion of the Series Trust. The fees ecarned by the Manager during the
period ended May 31, 2020 and outstanding fees payable to the Manager a5 of May 31, 2020 have been disclosed in
the Statement of Orperations and the Statement of Assets and Liahilities, respectively.

(E) Distributor Fees

The Distributor will be entitled to receive out of the assets of the Series Trust a fee of 0.33% per anmum of the Fee
Amount of each class of Units, calculated and acerued daily and payeble monthly in arrcars. The [ees earned by the
Distributor during the period ended May 31, 2020 and outstanding fees pavable to the Distributor as of May 31,
2020 have been disclosed in the Statement of Operations and the Statement of Assets and Liabilities, respectively.

(F) Agent Company Fees

The Agent Company will be entitled to receive out of the assets of the Series Trust a fee of 0.01% per annum of the
Fee Amount of each class of Units, calculated and scerued daily and pavable monthly in arrears. The fees enrned by
the Agent during the period ended May 31, 2020 and outstanding fees payable to the Agent Company as of May 31,
2020 have been disclosed in the Statement of Operations and the Statement of Assets and Liabilities, respectively,
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Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1909 AUD

A Series Trust of Ortu Curva Trust

(An open-cnded umbrella Cayman Islands Unit Trust)

Notes to Financial Statements

May 31, 2020

7. FEES AND EXPENSES (CONTINUED)

(G) Other Fees

The Series Trust may bear other expenses related to its operations including but not limited to: (i) governmental
fees; (ii) brokerage fees and commissions and other portfolio transaction expenses; (iii) costs of borrowing money,
including intcrest cxpenses; (iv) extraordinary expenses, including costs of litigation and indemnification expenses;
and {v) audit fees.

{l1) Esrablishment Casts and On-Going Reserves

Az per the Offering Memorandum and Appendix, the Series Trust incurred a expense reserve inclusive of five vears
of anticipated expenses in vear | of the Seres Trust's operations for the calculation of the NAV in accordance with
the Offering Memorandum and Appendix. The expense reserve is composed of contrectual foes the Fund will pay
over its life. Management recognizes that this is e departure from US GAAP therefore expenses have been adjusted
through the Statement of Operations in the current period to reflect anly those costs attributable to the current period
in these financial statements.

The Series Trust incurred organizational and set up costs. For the calculation of the NAV in accordance with the
Offering Memorandum and Appendix these costs are amortized by the Serics Trust over the first three accounting
periads of its life. Amortization of such expenses over this time peried is a divergence from US GAAP, and is
therefiore for these financial statements the amounts have been expensed through the Statement of Operations in full.

A reconciliation for the difference hetween the net asset value of the Scrics Trust as per the [inancial statements
(“FS NAV™), which is calculatcd in sccordance with US GAAP, and the NAV celculated in accordance with the
Offering Memorandum and Appendix (the "“Trading NAV") is shown below,

2020
Trading NAV 45,029,308
Organization expenses (129.842)
Expense reserve 1,080,179
F5 MAV 45,879 645

3. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Manager is responsible under the Master Trust Deed for (he management of the investment and re-investment of
the assels of the Series Trust, the exercise of the power to borrow money in respect of the Series T'mst and for the
issue and repurchase of units of the Series Trust

The Trustee is responsible under the master wust deed for the administration of each Series Trust and for keeping the
register of unitholders.

The Manager and the Trustee are entitled to receive fees and expenses out of the assets of the Series Trust. Derails of
these fiees are set out in Note 7 to the financial statements.

9. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Trustee and Manager have evaluated all subsequent transactions and events through November 4, 2020, the dale
on which these financial statements were available to be issued.

From June 1, 2020 through to the date of this report, there were no subscriptions, and there were redemplions off
AUD 2,271,512,
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Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1909 AUD

A Series Trust of Ortu Curva Trust

(An open-ended umbrella Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements

May 31, 2020

9. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS (CONTINUED)

On March 11, 2020, the World Health Organization declared the coronavirus disease 2019 (“COVID -197) a
pandemic. Uncertainty remains around (i) the length of the disruption, and (if) the impact of the COVID-19 on
global markets. The Trustee and the Manager consider the effects of the pandemic since the reporting date to be a
non-adjusting post balance sheet event. The value of assets held in the Series Trust has not been adjusied duc to the
coronavirus situation and Management note no significant performance issues for the Series Trust as 2 result of the
pandemic. Management has made an assessment of the impact of recent market events on the fimd's ability to
continue as a going concern and concluded that the poing concern 2ssumption remains appropriate.

The Trustee and the Manager are monitoring developments relating to coromavirus and are coordinating their

operational response based on existing business continuity plans and on guidance from the World Health
Organization, relevant governments, and general pandemic response practices.
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{Expressed in Australion Dollar)
Principal
JAmount  Security Description
PERFORMANCGE LINKED NOTES

CAYMAN |SLANDE

Siggruwam Mikenia I, Lo,
AUD 45445910 5.8% due 2524

TOTAL CAYMAN |SLANDS
TOTAL PERFORMAMNCE LINKED NOTES (Cost 245 215,003
TOTAL INVESTMENTE (Cost $45,215,003)

% of Net

aT.T%
BT.TA

5 44,588,261
5 44 599261
5 44 893,259

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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2020
142,545,174 15,081,279
1,787,611 189,129
140,757,564 14,892,150
13,797,090
10.20 1,079
2020
45,469,941 3,432,526
1,301,950 98,284
44,167,991 3,334,242
4,456,035
9.91 748
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2020
750,000 7,935
75

159/260



EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOoO0oDo0o0oo00boOo0doOO(ELsSo33)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

10 EQ 10 EQ

2020 10 EQ 5,000
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473,508,582.63
269,461,511.69
183,806,973.58
69,823,920,290
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23 103

2020 30
105.80
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10 EQ
2019 12 31
2019 2018
2,133,979 225,775 2,776,023 293,703
442,373 46,803 108,904 11,522
2,576,352 272,578 2,884,927 305,225
(2,009,880)  (212,645)
2,576,352 272,578 875,047 92,580
2,576,352 272,578 875,047 92,580
11 750,000 79,350 750,000 79,350
1,826,352 193,228 125,047 13,230
2,576,352 272,578 875,047 92,580

2020
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10 EQ
2019 12 31
2019 2018
2,940,188 311,072 3,563, 356 377,003
2,940,188 311,072 3,563, 356 377,003
(974,634)  (103,116)  (3,303,296)  (349,489)
(256,294) (27,116) 251,597 26,619
1,709,260 180,840 511,657 54,133
6 1 14 1
(7,961) (842) (4,415) (467)
(7,955) (842) (4,401) (466)
1,701,305 179,998 507,256 53,668
1,701,305 179,998 507,256 53,668
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10 EQ
2019 12 31
2018 750,000 79,350 367,791 38,912 1,117,791 118,262
507,256 53,668 507,256 53,668
507,256 53,668 507,256 53,668
(750,000)  (79,350) (750,000)  (79,350)
(750,000)  (79,350) (750,000)  (79,350)
2018 12 31 750,000 79,350 125,047 13,230 875,047 92,580
2019 750,000 79,350 125,047 13,230 875,047 92,580
1,701,305 179,998 1,701,305 179,998
1,701,305 179,998 1,701,305 179,998
2019 12 31 750,000 79,350 1,826,352 193,228 2,576,352 272,578
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10 EQ
2019 12 31
2019 2018
12 341,424 36,123 468,437 49,561
341,424 36,123 468,437 49,561
6 1 14 1
6 1 14 1
(7,961) (842) (4,415) (467)
(750,000) (79,350)
(7,961) (842) (754,415) (79,817)
333,469 35,281 (285,964) (30,255)
108,904 11,522 394,868 41,777
442,373 46,803 108,904 11,522
442,373 46,803 108,904 11,522

442,373 46,803 108,904 11,522
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1Q EQ

2019 12 31

10 EQ
102
102

102 2019

50

2019 12 31
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0.0175 0.2
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2019 2018

5,417
256,294 (251,597)
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2019 2018 12 31 10 EQ
1Q EQ 1Q
2019 2018
6 14
6 14
2019 2018
(7,961) (4,415)
(7,961) (4,415)
2019 2018
6 14
(7,961) (4,415)
(7,955) (4,401)

2035
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2019 2018
377,786 317,110
1,749,603 2,458,913
6,590
2,133,979 2,776,023
2019 2018
2,007,320
2,560
12 31 2,009,880
2019 2019 2018 2018
377,786 317,110
1,749,603 2,458,913
442,373 108,904
2,569,762 2,884,927

(2,007,320)

(2,009,880)

2019

2018
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1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000
750,000 750,000 750,000
12
2019 2018
1,701,305 507,256
7,955 4,401
1,709,260 511,657
642,044 221,237
(2,009,880) (264,457)
341,424 468,437
2019 2019 2019
12 31
108,904 326,060 7,409 442,373
108,904 326,060 7,409 442,373
13
102 33.1
14
1Q EQ

2019 12 31
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IQ EQ Management Bermuda Limited (formerly known as Moore
Management (Bermuda) Limited)

Annual report and financial statements

Balance sheet
As at 31 December 2019
2019 2018
Note usbos usDs
Cument assets
Dabtors and prepayments -] 2133979 2,776,023
Cash at bank and in hand 442 373 108,804
2,678,352 2,884,927
Credlitors: amounts falling due
within one year 9 - (2,008 880)
Met current assets 2 576,352 875,047
Met Ansets 2,576,352 875,047
Capital and reserves
Called up shara capital 1 750,000 750,000
Retained eamings 1,826 352 125047
[Equity attributable to owners of the parent 2,576 352 875,047

The netes on pages 8 to 18 form part of the financial statements.

The financial statements on pages 9 to 18 were approved by the Board of Directors on 6 Augit 2020 and signed
on its behalf by

Page &
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IQ EQ Management Bermuda Limited (formerly known as Moore
Management (Bermuda) Limited)

Annual report and financial statements

Statement of comprehensive income
For the year anded 31 Decambar 2018

2019 2018
Notes usos usDs
Tumover 2,840,188 3,583,358
Cost of sakes - i
Gross profit 2,940,188 3,563,256
Administrative expanses (874,634) (3,303,208)
Other operating (iosses)/gains {2568,294) 251,887
DOperating profit 4 1,708,260 511,867
Interest recaivable and similar income 6a 6 14
Intarast payable and similar charges 6b (7,981) (4,415
Net interest payable Bc (7,955) (4,401
Profit on ordinary activiies before taxation 1,701,308 807,258
Tax on prafit on ordinary activities 7 - -
Profit for the financial year 1,701,306 507,258

All results derive from continuing operations.
Tha notes on pages 8 1o 18 form part of the financial statements.

Page S
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IQ EQ Management Bermuda Limited (formerly known as
Moore Management (Bermuda) Limited)

Annual report and financlal statements

Statement of changes in equity
As at 31 December 2019

Called up Ratalned .
share capital esamings Total Equitly

usD$ usD$ UsD$
“Balance as at 1 January 2018 750,000 367,791 1,417,791
Profit for the year . 507,256 507,256
Total comprehensive income for the year - 507,256 507,256
Dividends = (750,000) (¥50,000)
w with owners, mecognissd directly = {750,000) (750,000)
Balance as at 31 December 2018 750,000 125,047 875,047
Balance as at 1 January 2018 760,000 125,047 875,047
Profit for the year - 1,701,305 1,701,305
Total comprehensive income for the year - 1,701,306 1,701,306
Total transactions with owners, recognised directly E : i
in equity
Balance as at 31 December 2019 750,000 1,826,352 2,676,352

The noles on pages 9 to 18 form part of the financial stalements.

Page 7
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IQ EQ Management Bermuda Limited (formerly known as
Moore Management (Bermuda) Limited)

Annual report and financial statements

Statement of cash flows
For the year ended 31 December 2019

Note 2018 2018

usbDs uUsDs

Net cash from operating activities 12 341,424 468 437
Taxation paid - -
Met cash from rating activities 341,424 468 437
Cash flow from investing activities
Interast recaived 6 14
Mot cash used In Investing activities 6 14
Cagh flow from financing activities
Interest paid (7, 961) (4,415)
Dividends paid - {750,000)
Net cash used in financing activities {7,961} {754.415)
Mat Increass/{decreass) In cash and cash equivalents 333,485 {285,964)
Cash and cash squivalents at the baginning of the year 108,904 304 888
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year: 443 373 108,904
Cash and cash equivalents consists of:
Cash at bank and in hand 442 373 108 204
Total of cash and cash equivalents 442,373 108,904

The noles on pages 9 to 18 form part of the financial staiements.

Page &
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IQ EQ Management Bermuda Limited (formerly known as Moore
Management (Bermuda) Limited)

Annual report and financlal statements

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2019

Summary of compllance

Tha individual financial statements of IQ EQ Management Barmuda Limited (formerty known as Moors
Management (Bermuda) Limited) (the "Company”) have been prepared in compliance with United
Kingdom Accounting Slandards, including Financial Reporting Standard 102, *The Financial Reporting
Standard applicable in the United Kingdom and the Republic of Ireland” ("FRS 102).

Summary of significant accounting policles

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of thesa finandial stalements are sat out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to al the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

{a) Basls of preparation

These financial statements are prepared on a going concam basis, undar the historical cost convention,
as modified by the recognition of certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. i also
requires managemeant to axercise its judgement in the procass of applying the Group and Company
accounling policias.

The Company have early adopted the amendments of FRS 102 as a result of the triennial review, which
are affective from 1 January 2019.

{b) Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity conirolled by the Group. Conirol is the power fo govem the financial and
operating policies of an entity 0 as 1o obtain benefits from its activities. Whera the Group owns less
than 50% of the voting powers of an entity but controls the entity by virtue of an agreemant with othar
investors which give it control of the financial and operating policies of the entity it accounts for that
antity as a subsidiary.

Any subsidiary undertakings or associates sold or acquired during tha For tha year endad 31 Dacambar
2019 are included up 1o, or from, the date of change of control or change of significant influence

Where control of a subsidiary is lost, the gain or loss is recognised in the consolidated income
statement. The cumulative amounts of any exchanga differences on franslation, recognised in agquity,
are not included in the gain or loss on dispesal and are transferred 1o refained eamings. The gain or
loss also includes amounts incuded in other comprehensive income that are required to be reclassified
o profit or loss but excludes those amounts that are not required to ba reclassified.

Page 8
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IQ EQ Management Bermuda Limited (formerly known as Moore
Management (Bermuda) Limited)

Annual report and financlal statements

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2019 (continued)

2

Summary of significant accounting policies - (continued)

{b} Consolidation (continuaed)

All intra-Group transactions, balances, income and expensas are eliminated on consolidation.
{¢) Going Concem

The Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Company has adequate resources o continue in
oparzational axistance for the forasasabla future, and have adopted the going concem basis of
accounting in preparing the financial slalements.

Tha Company is part of the 1Q EQ Group and overall debt funding is managed at a I1Q EQ Group level.
The finance structure has been designed to accommodate this growth by capitalising the interest on the
convertible prefermed equity certificates "CPEC's"). There are significant non-recurring costs which
mainly relate to the acquisition, integration and project development costs, all of which are focused on
the growth of the IQ EQ Group and can be put on held to preserve 1Q EQ Group cash.

In light of tha Covid-19 pandemic the Dirsctors have considerad the impact on trading and oparations of
tha Company. This has included heightanad assessmant of the going concem assumption. Tha
Directors have implemented the following:

- Additional Covid-19 specific govemancs

- Rapidly implemented a remole working approach for all staff to maintain business activity

- Enhanced cost and cash management io manage outgoings ta maintain margin to budget levels to
counter impact on group revenuas

-  Enhanced reporting on key areas such as chargeability, billing and cash generation

The Company continues to produce management reporting in line with normal timetables. Trading
contribution and EBITDA marging for tha first half of 2020 are balow budgst and 2019 howavar tha
company remains profitable and cash generative.

Financial projections have been prepared of the operating performance and cash generation of the
Company in light of potential scenarics driven by the Covid-19 pandemic. These projections are basad
on assumptions including the future cperating performance of the Company; they demonstrale that the
Company has the ability to continue to Irade with a reasonable level of cash headroom for 12 months
from the date of signing thesa financial statemants.

Having considered the various assumptions utilised for the forecast and their effect on the Company's
trading, the Directors believe that the Company will continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future.

Page 10
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IQ EQ Management Bermuda Limited (formerly known as Moore
Management (Bermuda) Limited)

Annual report and financlal statements

Notes to the financial statements
{continued)

2

Summary of significant accounting policies - (continued)
{d} Foreign currency

{1  Functional and pressntafional cumency
The Company's functional and presentational currency is United States Dollars {§).

(i) Transactions and bafances

Foreign currency transactions are franslated into the functional curency of tha underlying antities using
the spol exchange rate at the dates of the transactions.

At each period end, foreign curmency monetary items are translated using the closing rate. Non-
maonatary lems measurad at historical cost ara translated using the exchange rate at the date of tha
fransaction and non-monetary items measured at fair value are measured using the exchange rate
when fair value was determined,

Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the setiement of transactions and from the
translation at pariod-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the income statement within ‘Foreign exchange (loss)/gain.'

{e) Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideralion received or receivable in respect of senvices
randerad from the provision of administration, corporale managemsant, truslaa sarvicas togethar with
ancillary services, net of any discounts and rebales allowed by the Company, and company value
added taves. Revenus is recognisad on an accruals basis, with defarral of any cash received in
advance. Deferred income is released to the income statement over the peried to which it relates.
Othar revenua items relate to:

{0 Intarest incoma
Interest income is recognised on an accruals basis.

{ii) Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is astablishad.

(i) Management recharge incoma/expansa
Management recharges are calculated based on the services provided and costs incurred by/ffrom
subsidiaries and other group companies during the year.

{f¥) Managament feas

Managemaent feas are received from the investment funds undar management as compensation for the
management services provided by the Company. Management fees vary from 0.0175% per quarter to
0.2% per quarter of aither tha product of tha initial unit price and the numbar of units in issus at a
Valuation Day coinciding with a Dealing Day, or of the Nat Asset Value (all as defined in the Offering
Mamoranda andfor Appendicas of the relevant investmant funds) for all funds. In somea cases, thesa
management fees are subject to a minimum andior an additional fixed fee also exisls.
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IQ EQ Management Bermuda Limited (formerly known as Moore
Management (Bermuda) Limited)

Annual report and financial statements

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2018 {continued)

Summary of significant accounting policies - (continued)
{s) Revenue recognition [continued)

{v) Consultency fees

Consultancy fees are received from the investment funds under management for senvices provided by
the Company relating 1o the sat up or tarmination of an invastmeant fund or sub fund. Such feas ara
determined on a case-by-case basis,

{fi Adminstrative expenses
Expansas are accountad for an an accruals basis and included within operating expenditura.
{g) Provisions and contingencies

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a resulf
of past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required o settle the obligation; and the
amount of the obligalion can be eslimated relably.

{h) Impairment of non-financial assaets

At each balance sheet date, non-financial assets not cared al fair value are assessed fo determine
whathar thare iz an indication that tha asset may ba impaired. Ifthere is such an indication, the
recoverable amount of the asset is compared to the carrying amount of the asset.

The recoverable amount of the asset is the higher of the fair value less cosls to sell and value in use,
Valus in use is dafined as tha prasant valua of tha future pre-tax and interest cash flows obtainabla az a
resull of the asseis continued use. The pre-lax and interest cash flows are discounted using a pre-tax
discount rata that represents the curment market risk-free rate and the risks inherant in the assel

If the recoverable amount of the assel is estimated to be lower than the carrying amount, the canmying
amount is reducad o its racoverabls amount. An impairmant loss is recognised in the incoms
statement, unless the asset has been revalued when the amounts is recognised in other
comprehensive income 1o the extant of any previously recognisad revaluation. Thareafter any excess is
recognised in the income statement.

If an impairment loss is subsaquently reversad, the carmying amount of the asset is increasad 1o the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount but only to the extent that the revised carrying amount does
not axcead the camying amount that would have been determined (net of depreciation) had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior periods. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in the
incoma statemant,

{I) Financial Instruments

The Company has chosen {o adopl Seclions 11 and 12 of FRS 102 in respect of financial instruments.
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IQ EQ Management Bermuda Limited (formerly known as Moore
Management (Bermuda) Limited)

Annual report and financial statements

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2019 (continued)

F4

Summary of significant accounting policies - (continued)

() Financial asseis

Basic financial assets, including amounts due from group undertakings are initially recognised at the
transaction price. Financial assets are derecognised when (a) the contractual rights 1o the cash flows.
from the asset expire or are seftled, or (b) substantially all the risks and rewards of tha ownership of tha
asset are transfemed to another party or (¢) despite having retained some significant risks and rewards
of ownership, contral of the assat has baen transferred to another party who has the practical ability to
unilaterally sell the asset to an unrelaled third party without imposing additional restrictions.

{ii) Financial liabilities

Basic financial iabilities, including amounts owed to group undertakings and other payables are initially
recognised at transaction price, unless the amangement constitules a finanding transaction, where the
debt instrument is maasured at the presant value of the future payments (net of directly attributable
Issua costs) discounted at tha market rate of interest. |ssua cosis are recognisad in the iIncome
statement over tha tarm of the dabt on an effective interest rate basis.

Debt instruments are subsequently carded at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method,

Financial liabilities are derscognisad when the liability is axtinguishad, that is when the contractual
obligation is dischanged, cancelled or expires.

{I) Offsetting
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amounts presented on the financial statements

when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognition amounts and there is an intention to
saltie on a net basis or to realise tha asset and sattle the liability simultaneously.

{k) Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as aquity. Incramantal costs diractly attributabla to the issue of new
ordinary shares or oplions are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tex, from the proceeds.

{I) Distributions to equity holders

Dividands and cther distributions 1o tha Company's shareholders are recognised as a liability in tha
financial statements in the period in which the dividends and other distributions are approved by the
stakehpldars. These amounts are recognisad in the statement of changes in equity.

{m) Related party transactions

The Company discloses transactions with related parties which are not wholly owned within the same
group. Where appropriate, transactions of a similar nature are aggregated unless, in the opinion of the

direclors, separate disclosure is necessary lo understand the effect of the transactions on the Company
financial stalemants
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IQ EQ Management Bermuda Limited (formerly known as Moore
Management (Bermuda) Limited)

Annual report and financial statements

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2019 (continued)

3 Critical accounting Judgemants and estimation uncertainty

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on hislorical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

Key accounting estimates and assumptions

The Company makes astimates and assumplions concaming the fulure. The astimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a materdal adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year are addressed below.

) Accrued income

Accrued income is made up of faes accrued fo the balanca shest date but are yet to be billed which are
deemed o be recoverable. Management assessed the eslimated recoverabla values.

() Provisions

Provisions are made up of debtors, which are not deemed to be recoverable. Judgement is used by
managemant to assess the recoverability of deblors.

a4 Operating profit

Operating profit is stated after charging/{crediting):

2019 2018
usps usDs
Direclors’ fees - 2417
Foreign exchange lessas/{gains) 256,294 {251,597)

For the years endad 31 Decamber 2019 and 2018 the audit fee of the Company was paid by IQ EQ
Group Management (lsle of Man) {formerly known as First Nemes Management Limited), a related

antity under comman control.
5 Employees and Directors
Key management compeansation
Key managemant includes the directors and members of senior managamenl The compansation is
boma by other companies related by common control, primarily 1Q EQ Barmuda Limited {formardy

Delphi Management Limited) and 1Q EQ Management (Jersey) Limited (formesty First Names
Management (Jersay) Limited) and is therefora not disclosed in thess financial statements.
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Management (Bermuda) Limited)

Annual report and financial statements

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2019 (continued)

] Net interest expense
{a) Interest received and similar income

2019 2018

UsD$ UsD§
Bank interest receivable 6 14
Total interest receivable and similar income ] 14
{b} Interest payable and similar charges

2019 2018

usD$ UsSD$
Othar (7,961) (4.415)
Total Interest on financlal llabllies i 4 415
{c) Net Interest expense

2019 2m8

usD$ usD$
Interest recaivabla and similar incomea ] 14
Interest payable and similar charges (7.981) {4.415)
Net interest expense (7,955) {4,401)

T Income Tax

Under current Barmuda laws, tha Company is not required to pay any taxes in Bermuda on sither
income or capital gains. The Company has received an underlaking from the Minister of Finance in
Barmuda axempting it from any such taxes at laast until the year 2035,

8 Debtors 2019 2018
usD$ USD$
Amounts due within on year
Trade debtors and accrued income 377,788 317,110
Amounts owed by related 1,749,603 2,458,913
Prepayments 6,590
2,133,879 2,776,083

Tha amounts owad by group undertakings are unsecurad, interast fres, have no ficed date of
rapayment and are repayable on demand.
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Management (Bermuda) Limited)
Annual report and financial statements

Motes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2019 (continued)

] Craditors 2019 2018
uso$ UsDs
Amounts dus within ane ysar
Amounts owed fo related parties - 2,007,320
Accruals and defemed income . 2,560
At 31 December = 2,009,880

The amounts due to group underiakings are unsecured, interest free, have no fixed date of repayment

and are repayabls on demand.

10 Financial instruments

The company has the following financial instruments:

2018 2019 2018 2018
usDs UsSD$ usDs UsD$
Financial assals that are maasured at amortisad
cost
Trade debtors 37T. 786 317110
Othar recaivablas 1,745,803 2,458 913
Cash and cash equivalents 442,373 108,504
2,589,762 2,884,927
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
Amounts cwed fo group
undertakings (2,007,320)
- (2,009,860)
1 Share capital 2019 2018
USDS UsD$
Authorised
1,000,000 common shares of USDS1 aach 1,000,000 1,000,000
lssued and fully paid
750,000 comman shares of USD31 each 750,000 750,000

The Company has one class of share capital which carries no right to fixed income.
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Management (Bermuda) Limited)

Annual report and financial statements

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2018 {continued)

12 Notes to the statement of cash flows

Reconciliation of operating profit to net cash from operating activities

2019 2018
UsSD$ UsD$
Profit far the financial year 1,701,306 507,256
Adjustments for:
Net inlerest expense 7,955 4,401
Operating profit 1,709,260 511,657
Working capital movements:
Decrease in debtors and prepayments 842,044 221,237
Decrease in payables (2,009,880) (284,45T)
Cash flow from operating activities 241 424 468 437
Analysis of change in net funds
Cash at bank and in hand
At Cash flows Exchange As at
01/01/2019 2019 movements JHZ2018
Cash at bank 108,904 328,080 7,409 442 373
Total 108,504 328,080 7408 442,373
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Management (Bermuda) Limited)

Annual report and financial statements

Motes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2019 (continued)

14

15

Related party transactions
Othar than nota 4, transactions with other wholly owned subsidiarias related by commeon control are not
disclosed as the Company has taken advanlage of the exemption in section 33.1A of FRS 102

Controlling parties
Following the restructure of the group, the Company’s immeadiate parent undertaking is 1 EQ Group
Holdco (Jersey) Limited {formedy known as Moore Group Limited), a company incorporated in Jersey.

As at 31 December 2018, the ullimate holding company into which the results are consolidated s
Saphilux Sar (a Luxembourg antity).

Evants after the end of the reporting period

In light of tha Covid-19 pandamic the Company in line with the UK Govemmeant advica and

recommendations were guick to implement a remote working approach for all staff o maintain business
activity. Due o the success of this it is the opinion of the Directors that the company and Group will
ramain profitable in a range of scanarios and continus to ba cash genarative. Further information on

the going concem has been noted in the Directors’ report.
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2020 30 2019 30
3,008,429 318,292 3,093,877 327,332
427,742 45,255 150,064 15,877
3,436,171 363,547 3,243,941 343,209
(719,341) (76,106)
3,436,171 363,547 2,524,600 267,103
3,436,171 363,547 2,524,600 267,103
750,000 79,350 750,000 79,350
2,686,171 284,197 1,774,600 187,753
3,436,171 363,547 2,524,600 267,103
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2020 2019

2020 30 2019 30
1,208,418 127,851 1,467,746 155,288
1,208,418 127,851 1,467,746 155,288
(348, 650) (36,887) (13,798) (1,460)
42 4 197,249 20,869
859,810 90,968 1,651,197 174,697
9 1 1 0
(1,645) 174)
9 1 (1,644) @174)
859,819 90,969 1,649,553 174,523
859,819 90,969 1,649,553 174,523
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1Q EQ

2020 30
2019 750,000 79,350 125,047 13,230 875,047 92,580
2019 30 1,649,553 174,523 1,649,553 174,523
1,649,553 174,523 1,649,553 174,523
2019 30 750,000 79,350 1,774,600 187,753 2,524,600 267,103
2019 12 31 51,752 5,475 51,752 5,475
51,752 5,475 51,752 5,475
2019 12 31 750,000 79,350 1,826,352 193,228 2,576,352 272,578
2020 750,000 79,350 1,826,352 193,228 2,576,352 272,578
2020 30 859,819 90,969 859,819 90,969
859,819 90,969 859,819 90,969
2020 30 750,000 79,350 2,686,171 284,197 3,436,171 363,547
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2020 30 2019 30
(7,499) (793) 45,442 4,808
(7,499) (793) 45,442 4,808
9 1 1 0

1 1

(1,645) 174)
(1,645) 174)
(7.490) (792) 43,798 4,634
442,373 46,803 108,904 11,522
(7,141) (756) (2,638) (279)
427,742 45,255 150,064 15,877
427,742 45,255 150,064 15,877
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(42) (197,249)

2020 2019 12 31 10 EQ
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2020 2019
9 1
9 1
2020 2019
(1,645)
(1,645)
2020 2019
9 1
(1,645)
9 (1,644)
2035
2020 2019
395,821 303,450
2,609,313 2,787,132
3,295 3,295
3,008,429 3,003,877
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2020 2019
713,339
6,002
719,341
2020 2019
395,821 303,450
2,609,313 2,790,427
427,742 150,064
3,432,876 3,243,941
(6,002)
(713,339)
(719, 341)
2020 2019
1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000
750,000 750,000 750,000

2020 2019
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859,819 1,649,553
©)) 1,644
7,141 2,638
866,951 1,653,835
(874,450) (317,854)
(1,290,539)
(7,499) 45,442
2020 2019
(7,490) 43,798
(7,141) (2,638)
442,373 108,904
30 427,742 150,064
2020 2020
30
442,373 (7,490) (7,141) 427,742
442,373 (7,490) (7,141) 427,742

12
102 33.1
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Intertrust SPV Cayman Limited

2020 500,300 5,293

Brown Brothers Harriman & Co.
2019 12 10 1,000 1,068 5,800
2020 836 1,600
2020 875 5,000
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1.1 1993
2020

2018 2019
1.2
1960

1.3
1993
2020
2020

2020
2020

1.4

1.5 2019 12
10,857 2,886
2020
2020

1.6

2.1
2020
CIMA
CIMA

2.2
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1998

CIMA

2020
15

CIMA
CIMA
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CIMA 100,000 80,000
CIMA
CIMA
15
80,000 100,000
CIMA
21 CIMA
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4.2 CIMA
CIMA
2020
4.3
CIMA
21
4.4 2006 12 27 2018
CIMA CIMA
CIMA
CIMA
CIMA
5.1
5.2
CIMA

48

210/260



5.3

3.2 CIMA
5.4 CIMA
5.5 CIMA

CIMA

2020
2020
2017

5.6 CIMA
5.7
5.8 CIMA

8,536

42,682
8,536

12
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10
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2014
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500
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10
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7.8 7.7 CIMA
CIMA
CIMA
CIMA

CIMA CIMA
7.9 7.7 CIMA
7.10 CIMA 7.9 CIMA
7.11 CIMA CIMA
7.12 7.9 7.9

CIMA CIMA

7.13 7.9
7.14 7.13
7.15 7.9 7.9

CIMA CIMA CIMA

CIMA
CIMA
CIMA
CIMA

CIMA

7.16 7.9 7.9 7.15

CIMA CIMA
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7.17 7.15 CIMA

CINA
94

CIMA 7.9 7.9

7.18 CIMA 7.17
7.9

7.19 CIMA 7.9

7.20 7.17

7.21 CINA CIMA
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8.11 CIMA 8.10 CIMA CIMA
8.12 8.10 8.10
CIMA CIMA
8.13 8.10
8.14 8.13
8.15 8.10 8.10
CIMA CIMA CIMA
CIMA
CIMA
CIMA
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CIMA
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CIMA

94

CIMA 8.10 8.10
8.18 CIMA 8.16 CIMA
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CIMA
8.20 CIMA

8.10
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CIMA
9.1 CIMA CIMA
9.2 9.1 9.1
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9.3 CIMA
9.1 9.1
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12.1 2019 257

12.2 2019 247 248

10

13

13.1

2008

CIMA

7.17 8.17
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7.17
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7.17
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6.1 6.2 6.3
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Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1909 USD (the “Series Trust”), a
series trust of Ortu Curva Trust which comprise the statement of assets and liabilities, including the schedule of
investments as at May 31, 2020, the statements of operations, changes in net assets and cash for the period from
September 30, 2019 to May 31, 2020, and notes, comprising significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financia position
of the Series Trust as at May 31, 2020, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the period from
September 30, 2019 to May 31, 2020 in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“I1SAS’). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the “ Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Satements’ section of our report. We are independent of the Series Trust in accordance with International Ethics
Standards Board for Accountants International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including
International Independence Standards) (“IESBA Code") together with the ethical requirements that are relevent to
our audit of the financial statementsin the Cayman Islands, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Matter

The Series Trust may translate these financial statements and our auditors report from English to Japanese. We
have not been engaged to perform any procedures over the trandation. In the event of any inconsistencies
between the English and the Japanese versions of the financial statements and our audiors report, the English
version shall prevail.

Responsihilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Satements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles, and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financia statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Series Trust's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless managemants either intends to liquidate the Series Trust or to cease operations,
or has no realistic aternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Series Trust’s financial reporting process.
Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Satements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors report that includes our opinion.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
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and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the

economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with 1SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Series Trust's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Series Trust's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Series Trust to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

KPMG
November 4, 2020
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Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1909 AUD (the “ Series Trust”), a
series trust of Ortu Curva Trust which comprise the statement of assets and liabilities, including the schedule of
investments as at May 31, 2020, the statements of operations, changes in net assets and cash flows for the period
from September 30, 2019 to May 31, 2020, and notes, comprising significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of the Series Trust as at May 31, 2020, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the period from
September 30, 2019 to May 31, 2020 in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“I1SAS’). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the “ Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Satements’ section of our report. We are independent of the Series Trust in accordance with International Ethics
Standards Board for Accountants International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including
International Independence Standards) (“IESBA Code”) together with the ethical requirements that are relevent to
our audit of the financial statementsin the Cayman Islands, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Matter

The Series Trust may translate these financial statements and our auditors report from English to Japanese. We
have not been engaged to perform any procedures over the trandation. In the event of any inconsistencies
between the English and the Japanese versions of the financial statements and our audiors report, the English
version shall prevail.

Responsihilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Satements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles, and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financia statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Series Trust's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless managemants either intends to liquidate the Series Trust or to cease operations,
or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Series Trust’s financial reporting process.
Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Satements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors' report that includes our opinion.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with 1ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
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and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the

economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with 1SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Series Trust's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Series Trust's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Series Trust to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

KPMG
November 4, 2020
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Independent auditor's report to the directors of 1Q EQ Management Bermuda Limited

Report on the audit of the non-statutory financial statements

Opinion
In our opinion the non-statutory financial statements of 1Q EQ Management Bermuda Limited (the ‘company”):
e give atrue and fair view of the state of the company's affairs as at 31 December 2019 and of its profit for
the year then ended; and,
e have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice, including Financial Reporting Standard 102 "The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the
UK and Republic of Ireland.

We have audited the non-statutory financial statements which comprise:
e the statement of comprehensive income;
e the balance shest;
e the statement of changesin equity;
e the cash flow statement; and
e therelated notes1 to 15.

The financia reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is United Kingdom Accounting
Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 102 "The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK
and Republic of Ireland" (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

Basisfor opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable
law. Our responsihilities under those standards are further described in the auditor's responsibilities for the audit
of the non-statutory financia statements section of our report.

We are independent of the company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the non-statutory financial statements in the UK, including the Financial Reporting Council's (the 'FRC'S) Ethical
Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern
We arerequired by 1SAs (UK) to report in respect of the following matters where:
e the directors use of the going concern basis of accounting in preparation of the non-statutory financial
statements is not appropriate; or
e  the directors have not disclosed in the non-statutory financial statements any identified material
uncertainties that may cast significant doubt about the company's ability to continue to adopt the going
concern basis of accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the non-statutory
financia statements are authorised for issue.

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.
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Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included
in the Directors report, other than the non-statutory financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. Our
opinion on the non-statutory financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the non-statutory financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the non-
statutory financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materialy
misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to
determine whether there is a material misstatement in the non-statutory financial statements or a material
misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.

Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully in the directors responsibilities statement, the directors are responsible for the
preparation of the non-statutory financial statements and for being satisfied that they give atrue and fair view, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of non-statutory financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the non-statutory financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the company or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the non-statutory financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the non-statutory financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered materia if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these non-statutory financial
statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the non-statutory financial statementsislocated on the
FRC's website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor's report.

Use of our report

This report is made solely for the exclusive use of the directors and solely for the purposes of providing the
Directors with an audit opinion on the financial statements of the company that will be used in the consolidation
of its ultimate holding company, Sapilux S.ar.l. Our report is not to be used for any other purpose, recited or
referred to in any document, copied or made available (in whole or in part) to any other person without prior
written express consent. We accept no duty, responsibility or liability to any other party in connection with the
report or this engagement.
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DeloitteLLP
St Peters Port, Guernsey
6 Aug 2020
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